10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

- INCORPORATED 1653-
MAINE'S FINEST RESORT

Board of Selectmen Agenda
Village Fire Station — 32 North Street
September 8, 2016 - 7:00 PM
Call to Order.
Approve the August 25, 2016, selectmen meeting minutes.

Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the
Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

Consider a renewal liquor license application submitted by US Hotels New
England LLC, US Hotels New England Management Corp, d.b.a. The
Yachtsman Lodge and Marina, 59 Ocean Ave.

Public Hearing to adopt the MMA Model Ordinance GA Appendices A to D
for the period October 1, 2016-September 30, 2017.

Sign the November 2016 Special Town Meeting Warrant.
Approve the Certification of the Ordinance.

Set the public hearing on proposed amendment to the Land Use
Ordinance regarding roomers for October 13.

Approve the Government Wharf budget.

Approve street opening permit application from Sand Piper Capital
Management, LLC and Woodchuck Development, LLC to connect existing
sewer force main at Turbats Creek Road.

Discuss use of funds received from Ebs Cove subdivision.

Other business.

a. Citizen correspondence.

Approve the September 8, 2016, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Adjournment.

P.O. Box 566, 6 Elm Street, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 » Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470)



Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting
Village Fire Station, 32 North Street
August 25, 2016 - 7 PM

Minutes of the Selectmen Meeting of August 25, 2016

Selectmen present: Stuart E. Barwise, Patrick A. Briggs, Allen A. Daggett,
Edward W. Hutchins, and Sheila Matthews-Bull

Others present: Barbara Barwise, Deborah Bauman, Helen Conaty, Jean
Conaty, Michael Davis, Jim Fitzgerald, Werner Gilliam, Arlene McMurray, Allan
Moir, Bob Pappas, Dan Saunders, Laurie Smith and others

1. Call to Order.
Chair Barwise called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM.
2. Approve the August 11, 2016, selectmen meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectmen Daggett, seconded by Selectman Briggs, to approve the
August 11, 2016, selectmen meeting minutes. Vote: 4-1/Selectman Hutchins
abstained because he was not at that meeting.

3. Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address
the Board of Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

There were no comments.

4. Consider amendment to the Land Use Ordinance regarding roomers
for November 2016 Special Town Meeting.

Werner Gilliam, director of planning and development, explained the revisions
made by the town attorney. (See Exhibit A).

Motion by Selectmen Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs, to approve the
Land Use Ordinance regarding roomers for the November 2016 Special Town
Meeting. Vote: 4-1/Selectman Matthews-Bull opposed.

S. Charrette workforce housing update scheduled for September 27 and
29, 2016.

Mr. Gilliam gave an update on the charrette. (See Exhibit B} He explained that
this charrette is being held to address the need for middle income housing. He
encouraged people to attend the community listening session on September 27
from 6 ~ 8 PM. He pointed out it is important for residents to attend because
they use their input to come up with conceptual plans. On September 29, from
6:00 PM to 7:30 PM is the community reveal session where they go over the re-
sults of the planning sessions.



Selectmen’s Meeting -2- August 25, 2016

Ms. Smith added that information on the charrette can be found on the Town'’s
website.

6. Consider the $400,000 bond for the police department addition.

Ms. Smith explained that bids were solicited from seven banks, and four were
returned:

Norway Savings Bank 2.25%
Camden National Bank 2.35%
Peoples United Bank 2.50%
Biddeford Savings 2.75%

Ms. Smith recommends a bond with Norway Savings Bank on an annual basis.
She said the Board needs to adopt the resolution to authorize bonds as pre-
pared by bond counsel.

Motion by Selectmen Daggett, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to award the
$400,000 bond for the police department addition to Norway Savings Bank
with an annual interest rate of 2.25%. Vote: 5-0.

Motion by Selectmen Daggett, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, that the
resolution entitled, “Resolution to Authorize Town of Kennebunkport to issue
up to $400,000 in bonds for an addition and renovations to the Police Depart-
ment and communications building,” be adopted in form presented to this
meeting and that an attested copy of said Resolution be filed with the minutes
of the meeting. Vote: 5-0. (See Exhibit C).

7. Consider a sewer extension for the EBS Cove Subdivision.

Wastewater Superintendent Allan Moir received the application to connect nine
house lots from the EBS Cove subdivision into the wastewater collection sys-
tem. He said tying into the wastewater collection system should have little or
no impact. He recommends allowing the applicant to tie into the wastewater
collection system and also that the Town not take possession of this new sys-
tem because it is a pressure system.

Motion by Selectmen Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to ap-
prove the application from EBS Cove subdivision to tie into the Town’s

wastewater collection system and to not take possession of this system. Vote:
5-0.

8. Discussion of engineering proposals for wastewater projects.
Mr. Moir stated that as part of the new guidelines, when you borrow more than

$1 million from the Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF), is that you
have to use the Qualifications Based process (QBS) for selecting an engineering



Selectmen’s Meeting -3- August 25, 2016
firm. He explained that the steps of the QBS process select an engineering firm

based on their qualifications first. Negotiating costs is one of the last things
you do.

Mr. Moir said another option is to break up the loan into two loans, each under
$1 million; one loan for engineering services. and the other for rebuilding the
pump stations and other equipment at the treatment plant.

Mr. Moir would like to hire Wright Pierce for the engineering services because

they were used to study the pump stations and are most familiar with the pro-
ject.

Ms. Smith said their goal is to plan on construction next fall, leaving time to
finish the bid documents so they can bid early and get competitive pricing.

Motion by Selectmen Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to fol-
low Wastewater Superintendent Allan Moir’s recommendation to authorize the

Town to negotiate with Wright Pierce for engineering services for the pump sta-
tions project. Vote: 3-0.

9. Consider awarding the bid for the purchase of two one-ton trucks.

Mr. Moir said both the Public Works Department and the Wastewater Depart-

ment needed a one-ton truck replacement in their fleet. They received three
bids:

Yankee Ford $43,923 per truck
Arundel Ford $50,953 per truck
Autofair Ford $44,649 per truck

Motion by Selectman Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to

award the bid for Yankee Ford for two one-ton trucks at a cost of $43,923 each.
Vote: 5-0.

Mr. Moir announced that a fundraise called Paddle Battle is coming up at the
Nontantum. He said the fire department received a donation of a stand up
paddleboard that came from the Kittery Trading Post and is worth around
$1,000. Also, they have a gilt card from Cabela’s. They are selling raffle tickets

for $5 a ticket or 3 for $10. The money raised will be given to the Public Health
Department for whatever they need.

10. Accept the donation of $540 from the Portside Rotarians to the
Kennebunkport Public Health Department for the fuel assistance program.

Motion by Selectmen Matthews-Bull, seconded by Selectman Hutchins, to ac-
cept the donation of $540 from the Portside Rotarians to the Kennebunkport
Public Health Department for the fuel assistance program. Vote: 3-0.



Selectmen’s Meeting -4 - August 25, 2016

11. Other business.
a. GRB Shorebird Intern season report.

Ms. Smith said the Beach Advisory Committee had requested funds for the in-
tern for the piping plover season which was successful. The Board received a
report from the intern’s 10 weeks working there. The report itemizes time,
miles, number of dogs, number of people talked to, hours, tide.

b. Request from Bill Leffler to establish a Senior Citizens’ committee.

The Board received information submitted by Bill Leffler. Ms. Smith mentioned
that Bill Leffler is concerned about the Town'’s aging population and how they
might continue to live independently in the community. She would like to dis-
cuss his request with the Public Health nurses.

The Board will put this item on a future agenda.

Selectman Daggett asked if all of the asbestos has been removed at Consolidat-
ed School. He was wondering when the last time it was tested for asbestos.
Ms. Smith said she would check on that.

Selectman Matthews-Bull thanked the police and highway departments for
their cooperation with the tourists this summer.

Selectman Hutchins said he was looking forward to going to the Veteran’s
Build Dedication for the Holbrook Family, this Saturday, at 2:00 PM, at 160
Beachwood Avenue. The Town donated the parcel to the Habitat for Humanity.

Ms. Smith added that the public is invited, but there are parking issues, so
there will be shuttles from the Bentley Classic’s Car Museum, 3435 Old Post
Road, Arundel. Shuttles to the site are at 1:15 PM and 1:40 PM. Return shut-
tles are 3:00 PM and 3:30 PM. She thanked the Board for having the foresight
to partner with the Habitat for Humanity for this project.

Ms. Smith announced that that M. Welch and Sons, Inc. repaired a broken
sewer pipe at 4 Josiah Curtis Lane. Since it was an emergency, she was asking
the Board to approve the street opening permit after the fact.

Motion by Selectmen Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Daggett, to approve

the street opening permit for 4 Josiah Curtis Lane to repair a broken sewer
pipe. Vote: 5-0

12. Approve the August 25, 2016, Treasurer’s Warrant

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to ap-



Selectmen’s Meeting -5- August 25, 2016
prove the August 25, 2016, Treasurer’s Warrant. Vote: 5-0

13. Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Matthews-Bull, to ad-
journ. Veote: 5-0.

The meeting adjourned at 7:46PM.
Submitted by

Arlene McMurray
Administrative Assistant



Exhibit A — 8-25-2016

ROOMER Revisions
Article 2 Residential Rental Accommodation: The permitted accessory use of no more than

two (2) bedrooms in a leqgally existing dwelling or dwelling unit. This dwelling unit
shall be an owner occupied dwelling. Rogms rented may be for either short term or
long term rental to a roomer who may be unrelated to the owner or occupant of the
unit. Individual rooms shall be rented no more than once per week. For purposes of
this section a week shall be defined as Monday through Sunday.

Roomer — A person residing in and paying rent for a room in a single-family-dwelling
Residential Rental Accommodation whether or not the person eats meals on the
premises. See Residential Rental Accommuodation

Arlicle 4 Add to VR (4.3}, VRE (4.4) & CA (4.7) as conditional use

Article 6.10 6. Parking for a Residential Rental Accommodation shall include one (1) additional

off-street parking space per room rented, in addition to the minimum parking spaces
required for the dwelling unit.

Article 7.13 A. Purpose. The purpose of allowing Residential Rental Accommodations is to
authorize the use of legally-existing single-, two-, and multi-family structures for the
accommodation of roomers, for compensation, while ensuring the safety of the
occupants and minimizing the impact of such use on the surrounding neighborhood.

Such rentals and the revenue they make to homeowner's help make Kennebunkport
affordable for persons on fixed or limited incomes: enhance and diversify

accommodations available to visitors and tourists; and provide travelers with

affordable accommodations from which to explore Kennebunkport and the Seacoast
region. If not made the subject of appropriate, limited requlations, however, the use
of residential properties for Residential Rental Accommaodations may create adverse
impacts on surrounding residential uses including, without limitation, increased levels
of traffic, parking demand_ light and glare, and noise. Such impacis are deleterious
to the public health, safety. and welfare of the neighborhood and the Town because

they impair the livability and desirability of Kennebunkport neighborhoods for
residential uses.

B. Performance Standards

No more than two (2) rooms in-a-single-family-dwelling-whish-was-in-existenceon
Marsh-E8Y merrbelabanlitoroomes a

s-ar-ascessentusae-to-a-single-farmily
dwelling-provided-that: a Residential Rental Accommodation may be let out to
Roomers provided that:

1. No separate kitchen or cooking facilities are provided for or use by the roomers;

2. No signis located on the premises advertising the availability of rooms for lease
or rent to roomers;

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/168/8/16



3. No alteration or change of the-single-family-dwelling-the_dwelling unit in its
exterior appearance is made to accommodate the presence of roomers:

4. Ne-accessory-aparmentorheme-occupationislocated-in-the single-family
dwelling-The bedroom(s) being rented shall be inspected by the Code
Enforcement Officer and shall have code compliant smoke and carbon monoxide
detectors in addition to complying with current building code requirements for
primary and secondary means of escape;

5. The rooms occupied by the roomers do not have a separate entrance from the
outside;

6. The rooms occupied by the roomers are within the principal structure;

7. The roomers use utilities which are not separately metered from those used by
the remaining occupants of the dwelling unit;

8. One (1) off-street parking space per room rented roemer shall be required as per
Article 6,10 6; and

9. The owner of the Residential Rental Accommodation shall remain in residence
while rooms are being rented.

C. Approval; Permit; Appeal

1. Approval to operate a Residential Rental Accommodation shall be granted by the
Zoning Board of Appeals contingent upon a successful property inspection by the
Code Enforcement Qfficer subject to section B. above. Following such approval, the
Code Enforcement Officer shall issue a permit. Such permit shall be issued to the
property owner only, and is subject to sufficient evidence that the property is owner
occupied.

2. A permit to operate a Residential Rental Accommodation shall expire upon a change
in ownership or a change in owner residency status.

3. A single family dwelling approved to accommodate Roomers prior to November 8"
2016 may continue o operate under the conditions of approval as specified by the
Zoning Board of Appeals including the Land Use QOrdinance requirements and
restrictions in effect at the time of such approval.

4. Permit shall be revoked upon confirmation of a second (2™) confirmed Noise or
Barking Dog Citation related to use of a dwelling unit by a Roomer. Permit shall also

be revoked upon any confirmed violation of the requirements contained within the
definition of Residential Rental Accommodation located in Article 2. Any such permit
having been revoked shail not be reissued to the same property owner within one {1)

year (365 days) from the date of revocation, which shall require Zoning Board of
Appeals re-approval.

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/16 8/8/16



5. An appeal irom any decision of the Code Enfarcement Officer related to the
issuance, non-issuance, suspensicn or revocation of a Residential Rental
Accommodation Permit shall be taken by an aggrieved party to the Zoning Board of
Appeals within thi 30) days of the decision.

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/16 8/8/16



Exhibit B ~ 8-25-2016

SYETSv— s v

“UOISI 1S0IRIS 12)BAIG O JO I0I0PLIoM a1 0] suondo Fuisnoy Jo odun 2 apiaod o«
070 *$a9aA0[dWD [TE19] "STURYDIBW ‘SIUIPNIS ‘Sdal[Nwa] 6

DDI0A0M ISIDAIP 2 10) BUISNOY SUIARY [0 9ouBlodiul oY) JO AJUNRWWOD Il HJoNpPL} =

“GUISNOU IDJOPRIOM J0] DEI0ADY  «

107 SISO ASIT IDNPUOD oga s[RuoIsSjoad Suisnoy jo uoneziueiio joadion vosi gy
£ISE02RIS IIJESIN) YY) JO UOIJ[e0) SUISNOL 30I0JHIOM 2YJ ST oym

sjuedd pue Csdigsaosuods

‘SUOITEUOP J1D1[0s O AV JH¢ DEIeYD OU Si A1 [, "SARP 22U} 01 U0 WO} ISU] A[RIOYS AL ],
's|r0g j0aload o] ysidwonoe AJojewnn pue TUWLIoISuierq pue uolsia 4oy juasauad saapjoty
-03[E1S 980y, "S[rRUOIssajoLd BUISNOY 4901UN[oA JO WRAY » pur (s1aao]duid *saoddom
AIUNWWoN A} JO SI2GUaLL L)IM SU0ISSas duiuue]d "aaIsudjul “aalRIO(R]00 (LNt SajjoLtey )
< S9)1IIBYD IIE JeyYMm

&

S1ULOPISOL)

Wd 0£:/-Wd 00:9 Wd 8-Wd 9
UOISS3G [B2A3)] UOISSIS FUTUIISI]
LArunwwo) fjymunwwoy = -

..liﬂﬂHuHﬂ.




adiysdwep moN ulayinog jo 131ua)) juawdo[aaa(] AWoU0IF] {rUoISaY
Suisnoy anysduwivrpy man

ISBOOBIG J2)Eal) AL) JO AL pPaliun

AIUnod MIoA ‘AjiuRwWnNg Jo) jeiqeH

[Ppundy ‘Jlodjungauuay Uungqouay Liaquieyyy ],
SHOLTYHY JO UONRIDOSSY U 2] JO [I2UN0D AJUNOD HIOA
UOI23[[0D) 11083y odyunqgauuay]

[eHdsop MNIoA

11082y WNLURUON UL

queg dl

SOUIARSG UNQauUdY

ésrosuods ay) aze oym

uoneoidde ue i paoooad oy

Pa10A paeog oY) ‘SUDIA S, USRS JO pieog ‘S10¢ ‘0Ol 1aquadad ay) 12 uoneijuasaid ayjaa
-Teyd e aakd aanelussaldal uonieo) e 131y "1SL0deas Iajeal) ay) JOo UOIH[R0)) SUISNOH 9010)
-3IoM 93 ydnoday) Suisnoy o] uonjedijdde a13a.med B pasiopusd 331 UwWo)) Suttuv]d {imao.i)
ayy ‘Apuanbasuo)) "ug|d 2alsuayaadwo)) ayl Ul Jeos B S8 payliuspl sem SusNnol] 3010310

&933arreyo sryy pajydwoid jeym

"UOISSG [BIA9Y E 18 AJIUNWIWOD 2] 01 paplaoad st uonjewaojul oy ‘ssanoud oy
JO PUS 3y} 1Y “3Jom Ady) aans aeuw 03 suondo udisap Jiay) 1831 A, ‘SUOLIL[NSAT 10 pue
dutuoz maraag osfe sjeuolssajold asayy, “Apnis Aiqises) e unojtad pue 3daouod ¢ dojasap 01
SI93jUnN[oa uo[eo) SUISNO IDI0JIIOM Y] PUR AJIUNUIWOD 3] [10q Wo.d] palayies s induj

¢S933a11eyo asayj] je suaddey Jeym




Exhibit C — 8-25-2016

August 23, 2016

Motion: [ move that the resolution entitled, “Resolution to Authorize Town of Kennebunkport to
[ssue up to $400,000 in Bonds for an Addition and Renovations to the Police Department
and Communications Building,” be adopted in form presented to this meeting and that an
attested copy of said Resolution be filed with the minutes of this meeting.

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT TO ISSUE UP TO
$400,000 IN BONDS FOR AN ADDITION AND RENOVATIONS TO THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT AND COMMUNICATIONS BUILDING

Whereas, at the Annual Town Meeting duly called and held on June 13, 2013, the voters of the Town
of Kennebunkport (the “Town™) authorized the Board of Selectmen to issue general obligation bonds
of the Town in a principal amount not to exceed $400,000 for a term not to exceed 10 years to pay

costs of an addition and renovations to the Police Department and Communications Building (the
“Project™),

Now therefore, the Board of Selectmen hereby resolves as follows:

’ nk
I. That the offer of /Var’w vy So i gl e to purchase bonds of the Town in
the original principal amount of $400,000.00 with an interest rate per annum on the
outstanding principal amount thereof equal tag 1.3 5%, is accepted and approved;

2. That the Chairperson of the Board of Selectmen (the “Chair”) and the Treasurer are

authorized to borrow up to $400,000.00 from Mory,a ;g ngr_x%g 'chg on behalf of
the Town, with interest on the principal amount thereof at a rate o a.a 5% per annum,

which borrowing is for the purpose of financing costs of the Project;

3. That the Chair and the Treasurer are authorized to issue general obligation bonds in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $400,000.00, which bonds are for the purpose of
financing costs of the Project, and to execute and deliver a bond or bonds under the seal of
the Town attested by the Clerk, dated on or about August 26, 2016, and to determine the
date(s), maturity(ies), denomination(s), interest rate(s), place(s) of payment, call(s) for
redemption with or without premium, form(s), and other details of said bonds not
inconsistent herewith, including execution and delivery of said bonds against payment

therefor, as they may approve, their approval to be conclusively evidenced by their execution
thereof (the “Bonds™);

4. That the Bonds be issued in the name of the Town and in registered form transferable only on
the registration books of the Town, which registration books may be kept by the Town or its
transter agent, upon surrender thereof with a written instrument of transfer, duly executed by
the registered owner or his/her attorney duly authorized in writing;

n

That no part of the proceeds of the Bonds shall be used, directly or indirectly, to acquire any
securities and obligations, the acquisition of which would cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage

bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code");

6. That the Chair and the Treasurer are authorized to designate the Bonds as qualified tax-
exempt obligations within the meaning of Section 263(b)(3) of the Code;



/. [hat the Chair and the Treasurer, acting singly, are authorized to covenant on behaif of the

Town to tile any information report and pay any rebate due to the United States in connection
with the issuance of the Bonds, to take all other lawful actions necessary to ensure the
interest on the bonds will be excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for
purposes of federal income taxation and to refrain from taking any action which would cause
interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the owners thereot;,

That the appropriate officials of the Town are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of

the Town such other documents and certificates as may be required in connection with the
issuance, execution, or delivery of the Bonds;

That the Town Manager or Treasurer in consultation with Bond Counsel is authorized to
implement written procedures with respect to the Bonds for the purpose of: (i) ensuring
timely “remedial action” for any portion of the Bonds that may become “non-qualified
bonds,” as those terms are defined in the Code and regulations thereunder; and (ii)
monitoring the Town's compliance following the issuance of the Bonds with the arbitrage,
yield restriction and rebate requirements of the Code and regulations thereunder;

10. That if the Clerk, Treasurer, or Chair for any reason be unavailable to, as applicable, approve,
execute, or attest the Bonds or any related financing documents, the person or persons then
acting in any such capacity, whether as assistant, deputy, or otherwise, be authorized to act

for such unavailable official with the same force and effect as if such official had
himselt/herself performed such act;

1. That if any of the ofticers or officiais of the Town who have signed, attested, or sealed the
Bonds shall cease to be such officers or officials before the Bonds so signed, attested, and
sealed shall have been actually authenticated or delivered by the Town, such Bonds
nevertheless may be authenticated, delivered, and issued with the same force and effect as
though the person or persons who signed, attested, or sealed the Bonds had not ceased to be
such otficer or official; and also, any such Bonds may be signed, attested, or sealed on behalf
of the Town by those persons who, at the actual date of execution of the Bonds, shall be the

proper ofticers or officials of the Town, although at the nominal date of the Bonds any such
person shall not have been such officer or official; and

12. That the Town Clerk file an attested copy of this Resolution with the minutes of this meeting,

Dated this 25th day of August, 2016; (

= - A
\__/:/_",f;,’?;;_( s PRSP j =

"/;4 (o
fa lr 7t j]_';,"f’
(A — /

A majority of the Board of Selectmen

A true copy, attest: /‘/,Qgg 2.4 A Sfﬁw
C

lerk, Town of Kennebunkport




<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



D,

This application has been reviewed and approved by the following Municipal Officials,
whose signatures are on file with the Town Clerk:

l/ Police Chief
\/ Fire Inspector

v Code Enforcement Officer
s

aa‘L/\‘ M Town Clerk

-’],,/\LL{G(J‘\‘\-S(\’\M Llodge. & Mearina - o | & n\u_‘h‘n%



BUREAU OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES
DIVISION OF LIQUOR LICENSING & ENFORCEMENT
8 STATE HOUSE STATION
AUGUSTA, ME 04333-0008

DEPARTMENT USE ONLY
Promise by any person that ke or she can
expedite a liguor license throuph influence
should be completely disregarded. LICENSE NUMBER: CLASS:
To avoid possible financial loss an applicant,
or prospective applicant, should consult with the
Division beforc making any substantial invest- DEPOSIT DATE
ment in an establishment that now is, or may be,
attended by a liquor license. AMT. DEPOSITED: BY:
CK/MO/CASH:

PRESENT LICENSE EXPIRES

INDICATE TYPE OF PRIVILEGE: X MALT < SPIRITUOUS &VINOUS

INDICATE TYPE OF LICENSE:

«§ RESTAURANT (Class LILIILIV) & RESTAURANT/LOUNGE (Class X1)

5 HOTEL-OPTINONAL FOOD (Class 1-A) <& HOTEL (Class LILIILIV)

& CLASS A LOUNGE (Class X) & CLUB-ON PREMISE CATERING (Class 1)
<& CLUB (Class V) % GOLF CLUB (Class LILULIV)

<3 TAVERN (Class IV) KOTHER:CMS&ﬁU A

REFER TO PAGE 3 FOR FEE SCHEDULE
ALL QUESTIONS MUST BE ANSWERED IN FULL

1. APPLICANT(S) —(Sole Proprietor, Corporation, Limited 2. Business Name (D/B/A)
Liability Co., etc.) _ —
USWTES N.E. MEMNT ColfDos: e vacirsmad) (ooiE +mAQINI DY
et onE (L. pos ST ocepro AVENUE
Location (Street Addreos?l_____ _
DOB: \annERUINILT s NG
Address ? 0 g&kﬂ M Cltg‘(ljl‘ own State Zip Code
\ cE RUNRUZ T Mme oMok | MM B @or an
City/Town State Zip Code | City/Town State __ Zip Code
0t 951 <332 751 96106is | leennBRunMRAIT T ME  ovod g
Telephone Number Fax Number Business Telephone Number Fax Number
| _ IO0F et 7S 26 G6FCedS
Federal LD. # ) Seller Certilicate #
(-
G Y EMAIL ADDRESS: o Sevolevieli) TR Ln 780 v, o

3. If premises is a hotel, indicate number of rooms available for transient guests: S O ‘
7 : . : 1.2 Mitlige YQ/
. State amount of gross income from period of last license: ROOMS § FOOD $ LIQUOR

5. Is applicant a corporation, limited liability company or limited partnership? YES>< NO «i
If YES, complete Supplementary Questionnaire



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

<G



TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

- INCORPORATED 1653-
MAINE'S FINEST RESORT

Public Hearing

Town of Kennebunkport
General Assistance Ordinance

The Town of Kennebunkport Board of Selectmen will
conduct a public hearing to adopt the MMA Model
Ordinance GA Appendices A to D for the period
October 1, 2016—September 30, 2017.

The hearing will be held on September 8, 2016, at 7
p.m., at the Village Fire Station, 32 North Street,
Kennebunkport, Maine.

P.O. Box 566, 6 Elm Street, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046 « Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470



G

KENNEBUNKPORT PUBLIC HEALTH

August 19,2016

Hi,
Arlene Here are the newest maximums for general Assistance.
There will need to be a public hearing and Selectmen approval.

These take effect Oct 1-2016-Sept 30,2017
Thanks



Office for Family Independence
19 Union Street

Farmly Independence 11 State House Station
Depoiment of Heplth amd S‘rln&i’i&;:’j:’q“: AugUSta' Maine 04333-0011
. Tel: (207) 624-1168

Toll Free: 1-800-442-6003
Fax (207) 287-3455

Faul R 1aPoge. Gavernor Mary C. Mayhew. Commissianer

TO:  Municipal Officials/Welfare Directors/General Assistance Administrators
FROM: Ian Miller, General Assistance Program Manager
RE: 2016 - 2017 General Assistance Ordinance Maximums

DATE:

Enclosed please find the following items:

* MMA's new (October 1, 2016-September 30, 2017) “General Assistance
Ordinance Appendix” (A - D).

¢  “GA Maximums Summary Sheet” which consolidates GA maximums into one
document. Municipalities do have to insert individual locality maximums from
Appendix A and C in the summary sheet where indicated in order to complete the
information. The “summary” does not have to be adopted, as it is not an
Appendix but a tool for municipal officials administering GA.

*  “GA Maximums Adoption Form” which was developed so that municipalities
may easily send DHHS proof of GA maximums adoption. Once the selectpersons
or council adopts the new maximums, the enclosed form should be signed and
submitted to DHHS. (see “Filing of GA Ordinance and/or Appendices” below for
further information).

Appendix A -D

The enclosed Appendices A - D have been revised for your municipality’s General
Assistance Ordinance. These new Appendices, once adopted, should replace the
existing Appendices A — D. Even if you have already adopted MMA's model General
Assistance Ordinance, the municipal officers _must approve/adopt the new

Appendices yearly.




The Adoption Process

The municipal officers (i.c., selectpersons/council) adopt the local General Assistance
Ordinance and yearly Appendices, even in town meeting communities. The law
requires that the municipal officers adopt the ordinance and/or Appendices after notice
and hearing. Seven days posted nolice is recommended, unless local law (or practice)
provides otherwise.

At the hearing, the municipal officers should:

1) Allow all interested members of the public an opportunity to comment on the
proposed ordinance;

2) End public discussion, close the hearing; and

3) Move and vote to adopt the ordinance either in its posted form or as amended in light
of public discussion.

Filing of GA Ordinance and/or Appendices

Please remember that General Assistance law requires each municipality to send DHHS a
copy of its ordinance once adopled. (For a copy of the GA model ordinance, please call
MMA’s Publication Department, or visit their web site www.memun.org). In addition,
any changes or amendments, such as new Appendices, must also be submitted to DHHS.
DHHS will accept the enclosed “adoption sheet” as proof that a municipality has adopted
the current GA maximums.




GENERAL ASSISTANCE ORDINANCE
APPENDICES A-D
2016-2017

The Municipality of adopts the MMA
Model Ordinance GA Appendices (A-D) for the period of Oct. 1,
2016—September 30, 2017. These appendices are filed with the

Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) in compliance with

Title 22 M.R.S.A. §4305(4).

Signed the (day) of (month) (vear)
by the municipal officers:

(Print Name) {Signature)
{Print Name) (Signature)
(Print Name) (Signature)
{Print Name) (Signature)
{Print Name) (Signature)

{Print Name) (Signature)



GA MAXIMUMS SUMMARY SHEET
Note: The overall maximums found in Appendices A, B, C, D, E, and F are elfective from
October 1. 2016 to September 30, 2017.
APPENDIX A - OVERALL MAXIMUMS

YEONRALL YA S

County 'LI ote Persons in Household
1 2 3 4 5 6
739 g60 /, 065 /, Y37 /,¥60

NOTE: For each additional person add $75 per month.

(The applicable figures from Appendix A, once adopted, should be inserted here.)

APPENDIX B - FOOD MAXIMUMS

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum
1 45.12 194.00
2 83.02 357.00
3 118.84 511.00
4 150.93 649.00
5 179.30 771.00
6 215.12 925.00
7 237.67 1022.00
8 271.86 1169.00

NOTE: For each additional person add $146 per month.

APPENDIX C - HOUSING MAXIMUMS

Unheated Heated
Number of
Weekly Monthly Weekly Monthly

Bedrooms

0 133 570 Jo" b &7/

1 )5S Gbb )8 Y 770

2 193 g28 248 9 52

3 267 ), /56 3,3 L399

4 _ A9 ), /56 Y54 1,397
(The applicable figures from Appendix &, once adopted, should be inserted here.)

FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY

MMA
07/16



Appendix B
Effective: 10/01/16 to 09/30/17

Food Maximums

Please Note: The maximum amounts allowed for food are established in accordance with the
U.S.D.A. Thrifty Food Plan. As of October 1, 2015, those amounts are:

Number in Household Weekly Maximum Monthly Maximum
1 45.12 194
2 83.02 357
3 118.84 511
4 150.93 649
5 179.30 771
6 215.12 925
7 237.67 1,022
8 271.86 1,169

Note: For each additional person add $146 per month.

B-1 Prepared by MMA - 9/2016



APPENDIX D - UTILITIES

ELECTRIC

NOTE: For an clectrically heated dwelling also see “Heating Fuel” maximums below. But remember, an

applicant is not automatically entitled to the “maximums” established—applicants must demonstrate
need.

1) Electricity Maximums for Households Without Electric Hot Water: The maximum amounis
allowed for utilities, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding electric hot water and heat:

Number in Household Weekly Monthly
1 $14.00 $60.00
2 $15.70 $67.50
3 $17.45 $75.00
4 $19.70 $86.00
5 $23.10 $99.00
6 $25.00 $107.00

NOTE: For each additional person add $7.50 per month.

2) Electricity Maximums for Households With Electrically Heated Hot Water: The maximum
amounts allowed for utilities, hot water, for lights, cooking and other electric uses excluding heat:

Number in Household Weekly Monthly
1 $20.08 $86.00
2 $23.75 $102.00
3 $27.70 $119.00
4 $32.25 $139.00
5 $37.30 $160.00
6 $41.00 $176.00

NOTE: For each additional person add $10.00 per month.

NOTE: For electrically heated households, the maximum amount allowed for electrical utilities per
month shall be the sum of the appropriate maximum amount under this subsection and the appropriate
maximum for heating fuel as provided below.

APPENDIX E - HEATING FUEL

Month Gallons Month Gallons
September 50 January 225
October 100 February 225
November 200 March 125
December 200 April 125

May 50
FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY
MMA

07/16




NOTE: When the dwelling unit is heated electrically, the maximum amount allowed for heating
purposes will be calculated by multiplying the number of gallons of fuel allowed for that month
by the current price per gallon. When fuels such as wood, coal and/or natural gas are used for
heating purposes, they will be budgeted at actual rates, if they are reasonable. No eligible
applicant shall be considered to need more than 7 tons of coal per year, 8 cords of wood per year,
126,000 cubic feet of natural gas per year, or 1000 gallons of propane.

APPENDIX F - PERSONAL CARE & HOUSEHOLD SUPPLIES

Number in Household Weekly Amount Monthly Amount
1-2 $10.50 $45.00
3-4 $11.60 $50.00
5-6 $12.80 $55.00
7-8 $14.00 $60.00

NOTE: For each additional person add $1.25 per week or $5.00 per month.

SUPPLEMENT FOR HOUSEHOLDS WITH CHILDREN UNDER 5

When an applicant can verify expenditures for the following items, a special supplement will be budgeted
as necessary for households with children under 5 years of age for items such as cloth or disposable
diapers, laundry powder, oil, shampoo, and ointment up to the following amounts:

Number of Children Weekly Amount Monthly Amount
1 $12.80 $55.00
2 $17.40 $75.00
3 $23.30 $100.00
4 $27.90 $120.00

FOR MUNICIPAL USE ONLY

MMA
07/16




&%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



@

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
TOWN WARRANT

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING
November 8, 2016

State of Maine County of York, S5

To: Tracey O'Roak, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of
York, State of Maine.

GREETINGS:

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the
voters of the Town of Kennebunkport in said County of the Town Meeting
described in this warrant.

To the voters of Kennebunkport: You are hereby notified that a Special Town
Meeting of this municipality will be held at the Village Fire Station, 32 North
Street, in said Town on Tuesday, the 8th day of November A.D. 2016, at 8:00
o'clock in the forenoon for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered one (1)
and one a (1a) and Questions 1 and 2 as set out below. The polls for voting on
Question 1 shall be opened immediately after election of the Moderator at 8:00
a.m. on November 8, 2016, and shall close at 8:00 p.m. While the polls are
open, the Registrar of Voters will hold office hours to accept the registration of
any person eligible to vote, to accept new enrollments, and to make any
necessary correction or change to any name or address on the voting list.

ARTICLE 1. To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting.
ARTICLE 1a. To vote on the following referendum questions:
QUESTION 1
AMENDMENT TO THE LAND USE ORDINANCE
Shall an ordinance entitled "November, 2016 Amendment to the Land Use
Ordinance regarding roomers” be enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the

Town Clerk's Office and is incorporated by reference.)

[Note of Explanation: This amendment revises the Performance Standards for
Roomers (individual room rentals in residential homes)]



QUESTION 2
FLOURIDE IN THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

Shall fluoride be added to the public water supply for the intended purpose of
reducing tooth decay?

[Note of Explanation: This proposal will be voted on in the Towns of
Kennebunkport, Kennebunk, Wells, Biddeford, York, Ogunquit and Arundel. A
majority of all votes cast from all of the Towns is needed for this measure to
pass. If this proposal passes then the Kennebunk, Kennebunkport and Wells
Water District will be required to put fluoride in the public water supply for the
intended purpose of reducing tooth decay.]

HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of
your doing thereon, at a time and place of said meeting.

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 8th day of September, 2016, Kennebunkport,
Maine.

Stuart E. Barwise Sheila A. Matthews-Bull

Edward W. Hutchins Allen A. Daggett

Patrick A. Briggs

A majority of the Selecimen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

A true copy of the warrant attest:

Tracey O'Roak, Town Clerk



ORDER

VOTED: That it be and is hereby Ordered that the Questions set forth below be
placed on the ballot of the Special Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport
to be held on November 8, 2016, and that an attested copy of this Order be
placed on file with the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport.

QUESTION 1
AMENDMENT TO THE LAND USE ORDINANCE

Shall an ordinance entitled “November, 2016 Amendment to the Land Use
Ordinance regarding roomers” be enacted? (A true copy of which is on file in the
Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference.)

[Note of Explanation: This amendment revises the Performance Standards for
Roomers (individual room rentals in residential homes)]

QUESTION 2
FLOURIDE IN THE PUBLIC WATER SUPPLY

Shall fluoride be added to the public water supply for the intended purpose of
reducing tooth decay?

[Note of Explanation: This proposal will be voted on in the Towns of
Kennebunkport, Kennebunk, Wells, Biddeford, York, Ogunquit and Arundel. A
maijority of all votes cast from all of the Towns is needed for this measure to
pass. If this proposal passes then the Kennebunk, Kennebunkport and Wells
Water District will be required to put fluoride in the public water supply for the
intended purpose of reducing tooth decay.]

GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 8th day of September, 2016, Kennebunkport,
Maine.

Stuart E. Barwise Sheila W. Matthews-Bull

Patrick A. Briggs Allen A. Daggett

Edward W. Hutchins, li

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine



<8
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



>

CERTIFICATION OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE

TO: Tracey O’Roak, the Town Clerk of the Town of Kennebunkport. In the name of the State
of Maine, we hereby certify that the Ordinance entitled:

"Proposed Revision to land Use Ordinance
regarding Roomers and Residential Rental Accommodations"

attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true copy of the Ordinance proposed for enactment at the
Special Town Meeting of the Town of Kennebunkport to be held on November 8, 2016.

Dated this 8" day of September, 2016, at Kennebunkport, Maine.

Stuart E. Barwise Sheila A. Matthews-Bull

Edward W. Hutchins Allen A. Daggett

Patrick A. Briggs

A majority of the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport



Exhibit A

Proposed Revision to Land Use Ordinance regarding Roomers and Residential Rental

Article 2

Article 4

Article 6.10

Article 7.14

Accommodations

Add to Definitions

Residential Rental Accommodation: The permitted accessory use of no more than
two (2) bedrooms in a legally existing dwelling or dwelling unit. This dwelling unit
shall be_an owner occupied dwelling. Rooms rented may be for either short term or
long term rental to a roomer wha may be unrelated to the owner or occupant of the
unit. Individual rooms shall be rented no more than gnce per week. For purposes of
this section a week shall be defined as Monday through Sunday.

Roomer — A person residing in and paying rent for a room in a single-family-dweling
Residential Rental Accommodation whether or not the person eats meals on the
premises. See Residential Rental Accommodation

Remove Roomer from Conditional Uses subject to Zoning Board of Appeals Review
from: DS (4.5), RF {4.6), GR (4.8) CPE&CPW (4.9), CPS (4.10), FE (4.11), FF (4.12)

Add Residential Rental Accommodation to Conditional Uses subject to Zoning Board
of Appeals Review to: VR (4.3}, VRE {4.4). DS (4.5), RF (4.6), CA (4.7), GR (4.8),
CPE&CPW (4.9), CPS (4.10), FE (4.11), FF (4.12)

Add to Residential Parking Standards

6. Parking for a Residential Rental Accommodation shall include one (1) additional
off-street parking space per room rented, in addition to the minimum parking spaces
required for the dwelling unit.

Remove Article 7.14 Roomers
Add Article 7.14 Residential Rental Accommodations

A. Purpose. The purpose of allowing Residential Rental Accommodations is to
authorize the use of legally-existing single-, two-, and multi-family structures for the
accommodation of roomers, for compensation, while ensuring the safety of the
occupants and minimizing the impact of such use on the surrounding neighborhood.
Such rentals and the revenue they make to homeowner's help make Kennebunkport
affordable for persons on fixed or limited incomes; enhance and diversify
accommodations available to visitors and tourists; and provide travelers with
affordable accommodations from which to explore Kennebunkport and the Seacoast
region._If not made the subject of appropriate, limited requlations, however, the use
of residential properties for Residential Rental Accommodations may create adverse
impacts on surrounding residential uses including, without limitation, increased levels
of traffic, parking demand, light and glare, and noise. Such impacts are deleterious
to the public health, safety, and welfare of the neighborhood and the Town because
they impair the livability and desirability of Kennebunkport neighborhoods for
residential uses.

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/16 8/8/16 9/2/16



B. Performance Standards

No more than two {2) rooms in a Residential Rental Accommodation may be let out
to Roomers provided that:

1. No separate kitchen or cogking facilities are provided for or use by the roomers;

2. No sign is located on the premises advertising the availability of rooms for lease
or rent to roomers;

3. No alteration or change of the dwelling unit in its exterior appearance is made to
accommodate the presence of roomers:

4. The bedroom(s) being rented shall be inspected by the Code Enforcement
Officer and shall have code compliant smoke and carbon monoxide detectors in

addition to complying with current building code requirements for primary and
secondary means of escape;

5. The rooms occupied by the roomers do not have a separate entrance from the
outside;

6. The rooms occupied by the roomers are within the principal structure;

7. The roomers use utilities which are not separately metered from those used by
the_remaining occupants of the dwelling unit;

8. One (1) off-street parking space per room rented shall be required as per Aricle
6.10 6: and

9. The owner of the Residential Rental Accommodation shall remain in residence
while rooms are being rented,

C. Approval; Permit; Appeal

1. Approval to operate a Residential Rental Accommodation shall be granted by the
Zoning Board of Appeals contingent upon a successful property inspection by the
Code Enforcement Officer subject to section B. above. Following such approval, the
Code Enforcement Officer shall issue a permit. Such permit shall be issued to the
property owner only, and is subject to sufficient evidence that the property is owner

occupied.

2. A permit to operate a Residential Rental Accommodation shall expire upon a change
in ownership or a change in owner residency status.

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/16 8/8/16 9/2/16



3. A single family dwelling approved to accommodate Roomers prior to November gh
2016 may continue to operate under the conditions of approval as specified by the
Zoning Board of Appeals including the Land Use Ordinance requirements and
restrictions in effect at the time of such approval.

4. Permit shall be revoked upon confirmation of a second (2™) confirmed Noise or
Barking Dog Citation related to use of a dwelling unit by a Roomer. Permit shall also
be revoked upon any confirmed violation of the requirements contained within the
definition of Residential Rental Accommodation located in Article 2. Any such permit
having been revoked shall not be reissued to the same property owner within one (1
year (365 days) from the date of revocation, which shall require Zoning Board of
Appeals re-approval.

5. An appeal from any decision of the Code Enforcement Officer related to the
issuance, non-issuance, suspension or revocation of a Residential Rental
Accommodation Permit shall be taken by an aggrieved party to the Zoning Board of
Appeals within thirty {(30) days of the decision.

WG 7/7/15 7/30/15 8/7/15 6/13/16 6/30/16 7/26/16 7/28/16 7/29/16 8/8/16 9/2/16



Agenda
ltem
Divider



Deposit on 8/5/16
4-320-73

Reavenues
14-73-07
14-73-20

Expenses
47-06 15-02
47-06 35-08
47-06 35-09
47-06 60-04

Fund balance

Pier Dues
Miscellaneous

Electricity

Float Maintenance
Pier Maintenance
Capital Equipment

Government Wharf
FY 17 Budget

4,791.11

3,650.00
0.00

3,650.00

500.00
500.00
500.00
2,150.00

365000

23 members @ $150 and 2 members @ @100

yearly costs

for minor repairs

for minar repairs

for major repairs, maintenance and replacements



<%
Agenda

ltem
Divider

g



j O

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT
Street Opening Permit

PROPERTY INFORMATION - 1}, ik Wewelopneat, LLC.

Name ol'Homeowner\C_;Ml} PM’( Cﬂi’lh’ Mf—\ m‘lﬂmu+ LLC-' Date: 55 I 31‘ IQ

Address: \ 0. 601( 2\ Kﬂﬂﬂ.&bb’ﬂk t HE O‘Iofn'

Telephone: 201 -O\%S-" 3 4 lﬂ Map, Block, Lot: Hﬂlﬂ 2| :y Gldctql. LoTr 52

Street to be excavated: Tf r bO'H' !9 C teL K IZMCI

Size of excavation (length and width): ﬂ"" —f w ide X +/ z2 lo ﬂ-{_:L

Reason for excavation: —,:3 C""\MC{' to_ox IS"‘I{IQ Se w-{ ‘FUFC! ‘i"[alﬂ.’

Permit Conditions: If there is, any intrusion into the black top, read should be paved from curb to curh.

CONTRACTOR INFORMATION

Date of excavation: q l 'q - CII 2'3

Name of Contractor; Bo\ [JD {n L

Address: (?0 66")l 309 Wahrb@’o HG O‘IOE)'?

Telephone: [2.0% Z“ K| “4 18 b Fax.__ 24 7"(0 9 I10)

BOND & INSURANCE INFORMATION
Performance Bond: O Cash O Check O Money Order ,m Surety Bond O Other

o
Bond Amount: & ZPDO —

Company that issued the bond (if applicable): N é't ot { / nsureal 1Ce ()O‘M’m‘l <f

Person or entity providing the bond to the Town (contractor, property owner, other): rn ‘I'fa C A’ 7~

Insurance Company: Aeati ia / NSLranlg =

Signature of person completing the application: /[ﬂu( (127 ] % ,; ') % Date: &8 '/ 3 I,/ / b

APPROVED ( /
M —
Highway Superintendent: ".”' /‘l Selectmen:
Seclectmen: Selectmen:
Selectmen: Selectmen:
Date Approved: Application Fee: $25.00
Date Paid;
*Please attach map or sketch showing the location Amount Paid;
and size of any cuts to be made; a bond; and proof O Cash [] Check 0 Money Order

of insurance.



LICENSE OR PERMIT BOND

BOND NO. S-851443

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT WE,

Foglio Inc* of
978 Main St Waterboro ME 04087 as Principal, and
NGM Insurance Company . a Florida corporation with its principal
office at 220 Salina Meadows, Suite 200 Syracuse, NY 13212 , as Surety,
are held and firmly bound unto

Town of Kennebunkport

in the sum of Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars

{5_2,000.00 ), for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our

personal representatives, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents,

The condition of this obligation is such, that whereas the Principal has obtained, or shall obtain, a license or permit from

the Obligee for
Street Opening Bond

at Turbotts Creek Road for the term commencing on the ___1st _ day of

September . 2016 and ending on the 1st day of September . 2018

NOW, THEREFORE, if Principal shafl failhiully observe and comply with all terms of the underlying license or permit,
and alt Ordinances, Rules and Regulations, and any Amendments thereto, applicable to the obligation of this bond, then
this abligation shall become void and of no effect, otherwise to be and remain in full force and virtue.

The Suraty may